
Minutes 

Bristol Select Board 

September 21, 2015 

Present:  Select Board members:  Janet Cote, Shaun Lagueux, Betsy Schneider, Rick Alpers, Paul 

Manganiello, and Town Administrator Michael Capone.   

The meeting was called to order at 6:16PM. 

Mr. Alpers made a motion to approve the public and non-public minutes from September 10, 2015, 

seconded by Mr. Lagueux. Mrs. Cote requested edits to a typo on page 3 paragraph 3, page 2 should 

include more specifics in the last sentence to include Spring Street and Central Street,  page 5 to word 

the transfer of money discussion as  the warrant article states, and on page 6 paragraph 3 to state this 

more as a question than a comment. Ms. Schneider requested that the number on page 5 pertaining to 

police detail account be changed to 13 weeks from the stated 32 weeks.   Mr. Capone noted that the 

minutes need to reflect what was said, but a correction to Ms. Schneider’s comment could be noted in 

the minutes of this meeting. As there was no further discussion, the Board voted 5-0 in favor of 

approving the minutes as amended.  Mr. Capone stated that he would make the necessary changes and 

provide the Board with an amended copy to sign at the next meeting. 

Consent agenda: Mr. Alpers made a motion to approve the consent agenda dated September 21, 2015 

to include the items named therein, seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the 

motion.  

One Check System- Raymah Simpson, Melanie Shokal, and Kathleen Haskell: 

Mr. Capone provided the Board with general information pertaining to the One Check system.  One 

check is used to pay for registrations instead of cutting two checks. The process has an oversight system 

with the work of one person being checked by another person.   

Raymah Simpson commented that she recommends the Town use the One Check system for a couple of 

months and then move onto to accepting credit cards.  The system is ready to go with the State. Mailers 

have been sent out to every resident that has a registration.   

Melanie Shokal commented that there are safeguards within the system.  This requires that another 

bank account be opened that would need to be reconciled.  If there is a returned check the Town needs 

to track it down.  There is extra work on the back end of this and some entries are doubled.  The system 

changes the way all transfers are done with TD Bank. Tax transfers and payroll transfers will require two 

people.  Ms. Cote asked if there are better checks and balances.  Ms. Shokal replied that the Treasurer 

signs off on the direct deposit file. The problem is that this requires two staff people. The Finance Officer 

can’t release anything as the audit process does not allow her to do that.  Ms. Cote asked who the staff 

people will be. Ms. Shokal replied that there needs to be a list set up of who gets the “tokens” which 



provide access to the system, to do entries.  The Treasurer, Kathleen Haskell has to open up a sweep 

account to move the funds through.  

Mr. Lagueux asked if this process is happening in other towns.  Ms. Shokal replied that it is, but that this 

goes one step further as the Town Clerk has authorization to transfer from the sweep account into the 

State account. Ms. Simpson commented that the Town will need four people on the list and that 

deposits don’t need to be made that night but can be done in the morning.   

Ms. Shokal commented that when the Town goes to credit cards we absolutely have to have the extra 

account to protect the general fund. Mr. Manganiello asked if the latest technology, like IPad transfers, 

is being used.  Ms. Simpson replied that the credit cards will be going through the Avitar system.  Ms. 

Shokal commented that the Town does not have any fees associated with the system as the purchaser 

pays the processing fee.  Ms. Haskell commented that tax payments would also run through the sweep 

account.  

Ms. Schneider commented that she would like to wait until a replacement for the Finance Officer 

position is trained before starting this system.  Ms. Shokal replied that the Treasurer relies on the 

Finance Officer to have the entries correct. There are a slew of entries and directives associated with 

this and the Treasurer needs to be comfortable with it.  Ms. Haskell commented that it will be a simple 

process, it’s just that it hasn’t been done yet. Mr. Alpers commented that the Town should wait until a 

new person is trained and is comfortable in the position.  The Board agreed that it might be good to hold 

off for a while. Ms. Haskell stated that she can start to set up the accounts and get that part going so 

once people are on board they can be trained. 

Mr. Alpers asked if the Town were better off using Franklin Savings Bank instead of TD Bank in regards 

to getting a better return on the dollars in the checking and saving accounts.  Ms. Haskell replied that 

she has had some discussion with TD Bank regarding this, but the two banks could be compared again. 

Mr. Capone commented that there has to be a balance between what is in the best interest of the Town 

and supporting residents with services they are looking for.   

Deeding Review-Raymah Simpson:  Ms. Simpson reviewed properties for potential deeding in the 

spring with the Board.  The Board was given updates on payment plans and balances.  Mr. Lagueux 

commented that in regards to some payment plans it looks like the balance will never be caught up. Ms. 

Simpson replied that more than the interest is being paid each month so some of the payment is going 

to the principal.  Some people do pay a lump sum or more than the monthly agreement also.  Mr. Alpers 

commented that making only one payment a year stops the deeding process so it’s good to get a 

monthly payment.  

Police Details Revolving Fund:   Ms. Shokal informed the Board that she spoke with the auditors 

originally asking for advice on the process for the revolving fund.  Due to a lag in receivables there has to 

be a cutoff date each year to complete the calculation of what goes to the general fund for revenue. 

There is going to be a residual at the end of every year. There are typically not a lot of receivables 

posted for the Police Department at the end of the year.  Ms. Shokal commented that the concern 

seems to stem from monies received in 2015 that were billed in 2014.  Ms.Shokal talked to the auditors 



and if the Board would like to transfer the money back it is just an adjusting entry. The Board was given 

an authorization form to sign transferring $21,911 from the account.  Ms. Schneider asked if the 80/20 

split is done quarterly. Ms. Shokal replied that the 80/20 split is done at the end of the year as a one-

time deal. 

Mr. Alpers thanked Ms. Shokal for her service to the Town as the Finance Officer and acknowledged all 

the accomplishments made over the last three years.  

Police Department Space Needs-Chief Michael Lewis:  Mr. Capone stated that the Board was provided 

materials from past space needs discussions and a sample RFP for a needs assessment. Ms. Cote 

commented that the Board is not in agreement in regards to a location and this discussion should be 

used to move this forward.  Ms. Cote commented that the 2007 plan should be reviewed and the 

deficiencies at this present location need to be addressed.  The meeting with SMP included discussions 

about space needs and minimum and preferred area numbers. Mr. Capone commented that when he 

first had a conversation with SMP about looking at options there were no other studies given to them to 

review.  This would allow them to develop an independent assessment.  The number from the June 25th 

email is a rough estimate on the size of the Police Department. SMP met with the Chief and went over 

the numbers during a phone call. The preferred area numbers were developed from a discussion with 

Chief Lewis. The minimum area column was developed after meeting with SMP, the Board Chair, Chief 

Lewis, and the Town Administrator.  Ms. Cote commented that there needs to be some open discussion 

regarding square footage as it is more necessary in some areas than in others.   Mr. Lagueux asked if the 

Board is looking at numbers with an eye toward reduction. Ms. Cote replied that the Board is looking at 

information regarding a space that is safe and compliant for the Police Department. 

Mr. Manganiello asked why four cells are needed.  Chief Lewis replied that when taking people into 

custody males/females and adults/ juveniles need to be sight and sound separated. Mr. Alpers asked if 

all four cells are grouped together.  Chief Lewis replied that juvenile cells need to be sight and sound 

separated from adults.  Mr. Alpers asked if the cells would be two for adults and two for juveniles. Chief 

Lewis replied that is correct.  

Mr. Manganiello asked how taking people into custody is handled now and if another police station is 

used if there is no space here. Chief Lewis replied that adults can be chained to the wall.  The meeting 

room or personal space needs to be utilized for juveniles.  Juveniles must be kept with two officers 

under camera surveillance. Grafton County jail is used if there is no extra space.  Ms. Schneider asked if 

the way adults are detained now is by actually chaining them to a wall.  Chief Lewis replied that they are 

chained to the cinder block wall. Ms. Schneider commented that the new facility in New Hampton also 

has the ability to chain adults to the wall and that it is a common practice.  Mr. Alpers replied that it is 

much safer to put people in cells and that Bristol only has one operable cell.   

Ms. Schneider commented that she was not aware that there was a broken toilet in a cell and that it 

should be fixed. Chief Lewis stated that he has requested that the cell be repaired. Ms. Schneider asked 

how long ago the toilet was damaged.  Chief Lewis replied that it was damaged in 2013. Mr. Capone 

commented that the original purchase requisition was not processed because of the talk of the 



possibility of changing spaces. Mr. Capone is presently obtaining quotes for the replacement of the 

toilet.  Chief Lewis commented that the cell with the broken toilet presently contains evidence because 

the evidence room is filled.  A new location will need to be found for the evidence in the cell.  Mr. 

Lagueux asked if a short term off site facility could be used. Chief Lewis replied that he can speak with 

the County Attorney regarding her recommendation on this.  Back in 2007, the Town did look into 

renting a trailer but approval would have to be given by the County Attorney for this.  

Mrs. Cote asked if the booking area needs to be separate for juveniles and adults and how often does 

this happen.  Chief Lewis replied that legally it wouldn’t matter if it happens one time or zero, they need 

to be separated.  Chief Lewis commented that in the booking process ages 21 and over are secured in 

their own area, ages 18-21 need to be secured in their area, ages 16-18 years need to be secured in their 

area, and under 15 years they cannot be secured anywhere as they need to be monitored at all times.  

Mr. Lagueux commented that this takes officers off the road. 

Mrs. Cote asked how much square footage the Police Department is using now. Chief Lewis replied that 

the numbers are in the plan. Mr. Lagueux commented that it is roughly 3,000 sq. ft. There is 2,826 sq. ft. 

in the original building and a little bit of the addition as well.  Mr. Capone commented that the SD1 plan 

from 2007 called 8,380 sq. ft. including the addition of the Sally Port.  

Ms. Schneider asked if the secured storage area on the plan is just chain link.  Chief Lewis replied that 

yes, it is chain link.   

Mr. Manganiello commented that he has gone back through the 2014 minutes to review the sally port 

and compliance needs. The 2007 article 13 looks at renovations rather than moving the Police 

Department off site.  If the compliance needs are looked at first, SD1 portion of the plan can be used.  

Mr. Manganiello commented that the Town should fix what needs to be fixed with the intention of 

putting forward a warrant article for Town Meeting.  The Town can grow into the SD 2 and SD3 parts of 

the plan.  Chief Lewis replied that he has asked the Town to do this exact thing on three different 

occasions. The current building can be utilized as the Police Department and if the Town wishes to 

proceed along that route the plan is already in place.  

Chief Lewis commented that the Town Offices could be moved to a new building constructed on the Mill 

Stream property site.  Chief Lewis replied that the Town wouldn’t be taking a parcel off the tax map and 

that a building could be built for approximately $200,000 to $300,000 with parking already there. Mr. 

Lagueux asked about the latest numbers on this project. Mr. Capone replied that the Police Department 

additions and renovations outlined in the 2007 plan were estimated to cost $744,391, but the Town 

could get a second estimate or use a multiplier to determine a current price.  Mr. Alpers commented 

that construction costs are estimated at 6% per year. Mr. Alpers commented that the Town would need 

to know from DES if it could use the Mill Stream spot for offices and the building would need to be tall 

and thin to fit on that footprint.  

 



Mr. Alpers commented that the sally port takes a lot of parking away from the current building.  Ms. 

Schneider commented that if the Town gets the adjacent property the plan could be done a different 

way. Mr. Manganiello commented that presenting a warrant article with this as the first building block 

would take on this part of the project now.   

Mr. Alpers commented that there is no money for a design to get ready for Town Meeting.  Mrs. Cote 

commented that the steps to take now would be to check with DES on the use of the Mill Stream 

property and to get design money to have the plan mapped out by professionals.   Mr. Capone 

commented that numbers are needed to write the warrant article. Mr. Alpers commented that the 

Board needs to ask for the money for a design, but this, unfortunately, puts the project off for a year.  

The estimated cost for an architect would be $30,000. Mr. Alpers commented that the Board should go 

to Town Meeting with a warrant article for design money and a negotiated price for the lot next door to 

get started.  Mrs. Cote replied that this is a priority and should be treated as such.  

Mr. Alpers asked if there was roughly $20,000 in the building maintenance trust fund. Mr. Capone 

replied that there was about $30,000 in the fund.  Mr. Alpers suggested getting a storage trailer for the 

police evidence if this expense qualifies under that article.  Ms. Schneider commented that a used trailer 

could be purchased for $3,000 to $4,000. Mrs. Cote asked if the evidence could be stored off site.  Chief 

Lewis replied that he will check with the County attorney for a guideline of what the requirements are. 

Town Administrator’s Report:  

The ads have been listed for the Finance Officer and Town Administrator positions.  They were posted 

last week.  Ms. Schneider commented that she would like the whole Board to look at resumes.  Mr. 

Manganiello would like to see a shortened list.  Mr. Capone recommended keeping the resumes at the 

town offices as they need to be kept in confidence.  The Board members can come in and look at them 

at the town offices. 

The draft letter on Northern Pass was sent to the Board for their review.  The Board signed the letter. 

Mr. Capone will send the letter to State and federal senators, State representatives, and district reps. 

LCHIP representatives will be in town on September 22nd to go through the Old Fire Station to review 

the work for which the Town is requesting funds.  

Mr. Alpers asked about the Cape Cod berms he saw up on High Street and if they will be a sidewalk. Mr. 

Capone will check with Mark Bucklin regarding this.  

The Triathlon is on Saturday and Sunday. There have been more registrations sent in.  Mr. Alpers 

commented that Jan has been very happy with the Towns’ support of the races.  

The Board was sent information in regards to the State’s plan to remove the five street lights in the area 

of the Musgrove Bridge at the intersection of Pleasant and Lake Streets. Mr. Alpers commented that it is 

a State intersection and they want the Town to take  over the cost of maintaining the lights.  Mr. Capone 

spoke with Mark Bucklin to figure out if the lights can be turned off to see what the area would look 

light without the lights.  If the Town doesn’t want to shut them off NHDOT has told the Town it will have 



to pay to keep them on.  This is not acceptable to the Board.  Mr. Capone is attending a meeting with 

the commissioner on October 8th regarding this matter.  

Mr. Capone and Mr. Vignale met with DOT about the hang up with reimbursement on the TE project. 

The money is in their Betterment funds. Mr. Rose from NHDOT will try to have this addressed by the end 

of the month. 

Pleasant Street update: There was a spill last spring in the Dead River parking lot. Dead River did pay 

remediation fees to have that cleaned up. The markings in the roadway now are just staining from the 

equipment coming out of the Dead River parking lot since it was paved. 

Ray Courchaine forwarded an email from Brenda Olsen of CNN I reports. Ms. Olsen wanted to thank the 

people responsible for the beautiful flowers and renovations downtown. 

Mrs. Cote commented that the Mica lot issue should be talked about at the next Board meeting. Mr. 

Manganiello asked if this property would fall under the 41:14-a acquisition provision for selling town 

property. Mr. Alpers commented that the Board has the authority to buy and sell property. Mr. Capone 

commented that there is a requirement to run it by Conservation and the Planning Board. It should be 

run by Water/Sewer as well.  

Mr. Lagueux asked for an update on the tax rate.  Mr. Capone replied that the Town has submitted all 

required documents to DRA. The SAU had one more document to submit. Revenues will be looked at 

one more time. DRA has the process automated now. DRA will send an estimated tax rate once the SAU 

submits the document. The goal is to have the tax rate set prior to November 1st.  

Select Board Items:   

Mr. Lagueux commented that the outstanding items for the police facility will be worked on by Mr. 

Capone in the coming weeks.  

Mr. Alpers commented that he wants to take the Board’s temperature on a proposed policy to limit or 

ban smoking in the park and town common.  Mr. Alpers asked if Mr. Capone could look on the list serve 

and see what some policies look like. The policy could be hard to enforce but it has worked at the 

beaches.  Mr. Capone will look into it.  

Mrs. Cote commented that the policy regarding the use of town buildings and spaces still needs to be 

developed and should be moved forward.  

Mr. Capone commented that he and Sandra Heaney visited the Old Town Hall to review the progress 

with the exterior painting.  Mr. Capone and Ms. Heaney decided that the money for the second coat 

should be used to finish other work that needs to be done to the building.  This would leave roughly 

$17,000 towards the ceiling, floor, and interior walls or any other work that needs to get done. 

 



Mr. Manganiello asked if the Town reached out to the people who planted those trees.  Mr. Capone 

replied that he is having a discussion on the type of tree and will get it sorted out. The Town needs to 

decide whether to put in replacements during the spring or fall.  Mr. Lagueux commented that it should 

wait until spring. 

Mr. Manganiello asked for clarification on the revenue number on the police outside detail.  Mr. Capone 

replied that the number will be revised based on the discussion tonight and an adjustment made. 

Mr. Manganiello commented that the CIP presented to the Planning Board at their last meeting. 

Mr. Lagueux commented that there was a brief Budget Committee meeting and that nice words were 

said about Michael Capone and Melanie Shokal. 

Ms. Schneider asked if the Fire Department ever got the new set of Jaws of Life and what happened to 

the old set.  Mr. Capone replied that he will find out. Ms. Schneider commented that she will call the 

Chief and ask.  

Ms. Schneider asked what happens to the old police vests that get replaced.  Chief Lewis replied that the 

vests that have been replaced go in the back of the cruisers to be used by officers that get called to a 

scene in plain clothes. They at least have some level of protection.  

Public Comment:   

Mr. Simard requested that the Northern Pass letter be sent to Senator Jeb Bradley. 

Ms. Hoyle commented that the flag by the new gift shop near the bridge has one clip gone. Mr. Capone 

will tell Mark Bucklin about this.  

Ms. Greenwood commented that if the Board is looking at signage for the park could they consider 

including no alcohol on the park as it’s needed regarding this.  Chief Lewis commented that there cannot 

be open containers in public. 

Ms. Manganiello commented that the two picnic benches on the bike path are in deplorable shape. Mr. 

Lagueux commented that he brought that up during a prior meeting and will be addressed.  Mrs. Cote 

asked if the kiosk was still there.  Mr. Capone said it was and he will check with Mark Bucklin. 

Mr. Caldwell commented that the Chair should summarize the conversations that the Board has as 

members of the public aren’t always familiar with the discussions. 

With no other business to come before the Board, at 8:34PM Mr. Lagueux made a motion to go into 

non-public session under RSA 91-A:3 (a), (d) and (e), seconded by Mr. Alpers.  A roll call vote was held. 

The motion carried by a vote of 5-0. 

 

 



The Board came out of non-public session at 9:22PM.  Mr. Lagueux asked Mr. Capone about the status 

of the funds we would be receiving back from the Solid Waste Coop.  Mr. Capone noted that we had 

received about $117,000 to date and that we were due two more payments possible sometime in 2016 

and 2017. 

At 9:25PM, Mr. Lagueux made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The 

Board voted 5-0 in favor of adjournment. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Wendy Costigan 

____________________________        ____________________________ 

Janet Cote, Chair                  Shaun Lagueux, Vice Chair 

 

____________________________         ____________________________    

Paul Manganiello, Select Board                    Betsy Schneider, Select Board 

 

_____________________________ 

Rick Alpers, Select Board 

 

 

 

 

 


